



Theater Management System

User Manual

Version 1.3

Table of Contents

1 Introduction	5
1.1 Purpose	5
1.2 Contact	5
2 GUI Overview	6
3 Quick Start Guide	7
3.1 IP Setup	7
3.2 Logging In	7
3.3 Screen Setting	7
3.4 SPL Creation	9
3.5 SPL Scheduling	12
3.6 Uploading KDMs	14
3.7 Content Management	14
3.8 Logout	14
4 TMS GUI Tabs Description	15
4.1 Monitoring Tab	15
4.1.1 Presentation	15
4.1.2 Screen Information	17
4.2 Scheduling Tab	17
4.2.1 Standard Use	17
4.2.1.1 Entry Description	18
4.2.2 Manager/Administrator Use	18
4.3 KDM Overview Tab	21
4.4 Show Playlist Builder Tab	23
4.4.1 Tab Overview	23
4.4.2 Colors	24
4.4.3 Show Playlist Creation	24
4.4.3.1 Principle	24
4.4.3.2 Element Types	28
4.4.3.2.1 Audio-Visual Content	28
4.4.3.2.2 Automation Cues	29
4.4.3.2.3 The end of t	30
4.4.3.2.5 Refresh Buttons	33
4.4.3.3 Properties Button	33
4.4.3.4 Show Playlist Saving	34
4.4.3.5 New Show Playlist	36
4.4.4 Show Playlist Opening	36
4.4.5 Deletion Operations	36
4.5 Screen Management Tab	39
4.5.1 Tab Overview	39

4.5.1.1 Playback Tab	
4.5.2 Applying Manager/Administrator Accounts	40
4.5.2.1 Pause Mode	41
4.5.2.2 Show Playlist Loading	42
4.5.2.3 CPL and SPL Management	
4.5.2.3.1 CPL lcons	44
4.5.2.4 Control Tab	45
4.6 Content Management Tab	46
4.6.1 Ingest Progress Tab	46
4.6.2 Logs Tab	47
4.7 Control Panel Tab	
4.7.1 Tab Overview	48
4.7.2 User Management	49
4.7.2.1 Administrator User Rights	
4.7.2.2 Manager User Rights	
4.7.2.3 Simple User Rights	51
4.7.3 Servers	51
4.7.4 POS File	52
4.7.5 Ingest	53
4.7.5.1 Monitor Tab	54
4.7.5.2 Satellite Ingest	54
4.7.6 Disk Cleanup	55
4.7.7 Log Report Generation	56
4.7.8 Multiplex Macro Execution	57
5 LMS Control Panel	58
5.1 Account Manager	
5.2 Applications Configuration	60
5.2.1 Log Retriever	61
5.3 Date Configuration	61
5.4 Display Configuration	62
5.5 Log Manager	62
5.6 Macro Execution	63
5.7 Netmap Editor	63
5.8 Networking Configuration	64
5.9 Remote Shutdown	65
6 Acronyms	66
7 Document Revision History	67

Software License Agreement

The software license agreement can be found at the following location: <u>http://www.doremilabs.com/support/cinema-support/cinema-warranties/</u>

Hardware Warranty

The hardware warranty can be found at the following location: <u>http://www.doremilabs.com/support/cinema-support/cinema-warranties/</u>

1 Introduction

1.1 Purpose

The purpose of this user manual is to provide guidance on how to use the Doremi Theater Management System (TMS) application version 1.4.x. The TMS is based on a graphical user interface (GUI) and allows the user to manage several servers connected to a common network.

1.2 Contact

If in need of help or assistance, please contact Doremi Labs Technical Support at: **USA**

- 24/7 Technical Support line: + **1-866-484-4004**
- Technical Support Email: support@doremicinema.com

Europe

- 24/7 Technical Support line: + 33 (0) 492-952-847
- Technical Support Link: <u>http://support.doremitechno.org/ticketing</u>

Japan

- Technical Support line: + 044-966-4855
- Technical Support Email: support@doremilabs.co.jp

Australia ~ China ~ India ~ Indonesia ~ Korea ~ Malaysia ~ New Zealand ~ Philippines ~ Singapore ~ Taiwan ~ Thailand

• Technical Support Email: supportasia@doremilabs.com

2 GUI Overview

The TMS GUI will automatically launch when logged in as doremi.

- To launch the TMS GUI manually, go to the Start \rightarrow Doremi Apps. \rightarrow Theater Management menu.
- The Doremi TMS GUI will appear showing the Monitoring tab as presented below (Figure 1):



Figure 1: TMS GUI - Monitoring Tab

- The TMS GUI is composed of a set of tabs that allow access to all available functions of the TMS. The tabs are listed below:
 - Monitoring
 - Scheduling
 - KDM Overview
 - Show Playlist Builder
 - Screen Management
 - Content Management
 - Control Panel
- The two buttons on the top right corner with left and right arrow icons are backward and forward functions. They allow the user to go back to the recently viewed tab (Figure 1).
- The bottom of the frame will display the complete date at the right corner and the total disk space and available free space of the LMS. The font color will change to indicate the available free space. A yellow color represents 10-20% and red color represents below 10% of total available free disk space (Figure 1).

3 Quick Start Guide

This quick start guide provides guidance on how to use the TMS GUI in order to configure screens, create and schedule SPLs, check associated KDM availability, and manage the associated content ingest processes.

3.1 IP Setup

The Networking Configuration feature allows the user to set the network parameters. To access the Networking Configuration feature, go to Menu \rightarrow LMS Control Panel \rightarrow Networking Configuration. In the Devices tab of the window that appears, double click on the Ethernet port that you wish to configure. Fill out the fields on the window that appears with the help of your IT administrator.

3.2 Logging In

To be able to configure screens, the user needs to be logged in as admin.

- Go to the Control Panel tab and click on the User icon.
- The following window will appear (Figure 2):

Cl Ma Admin:	ck Cancel to enter whith nager: Allow you to exe Allow you to execute all	out logging in. cute all actions actions and modify
	settings	
Username:	admin	-
Password:		
<u>L</u> ogout		OK Cancel

Figure 2: Authentication Window

- Select admin in the User name field.
- Enter the admin password in the password field.
 - Doremi Labs, Inc. has the default password.
- Click on OK.
- The user is now logged in as admin.

3.3 Screen Setting

- To perform the set up of the screens, click on the Servers icon in the Control Panel tab.
- The Server Edit screen will appear allowing the user to configure the screens in the appropriate manner (Figure 3).

Add Serve	r Button Rem	nove Server Button Scan Network Button	
	Add Server Screen-02 Screen-04 Screen-05 Screen-06 Screen-07 Screen-01 Intel Screen-03	emi Cipema - Administrator	
Server IP		Server group (Required for Ingest) Server JP: Ingest Protocol: FTP • Iest Login: Password: Confirm Password: Share directory: Image: I	IP

Figure 3: Add Server GUI

- To add a server, click on the Add Server button.
- To remove a server, select it and click on the Remove Server button.
- To scan for available servers, click on the Scan Network button.
 - The Network Scan window will appear.
 - Select one or more servers to add and then Click OK to add.

Network sca	in				
Scanning multip	lex				rescan
Management Ip	list	Switch IPs	Use Server Ip	Use Manag	ement IP
Server Type	Mgmt IP	Server Ip	Serial Number	Version	1
DCP2000	10.11.18.101	10.11.18.101	99001	2.2.4-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.11	10.11.18.12	199000	2.0.11-0	_
DCP2000	10.11.18.13	192.168.100.50	199000	2.0.8-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.131	10.11.18.131	199176	2.2.3-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.141	10.11.18.141	199172	2.2.3-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.142	10.11.18.142	199170	2.2.3-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.144	192.168.100.50	99002	2.2.3-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.161	10.11.18.166	99001	2.2.3-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.53	10.11.18.53	199119	2.3.4-0	
DCP2000	10.11.18.54	192.168.100.50	245160	2.3.4-0	r.
DCP2000	10.11.18.55	10.11.18.52	199000	2.2.4-0	1

Figure 4: Scan Network Window

- To manually add a server:
 - Click on the Add Server button.
 - Fill in the required information (Figure 3).
 - For screen servers, enter the auditorium number, usually between 1 and 32, and specify the type of playback (3D or 2D).
 - The serial number field will be filled automatically once the Save button is clicked.
 - Select the network server type and the file type.
 - Ingest server should only be selected for the LMS.
 - Input the server IP and the management IP, with their respective usernames and passwords.
 - <u>Note</u>: The server IP would typically use the "manager" login type and the management IP would typically use the "admin" login type.

Note: If the LMS Library resides on the TMS server itself, then the IP addresses are the same as the TMS. The manager and admin account information has to match the account information on that particular screen server.

• Click on Save when finished.

3.4 SPL Creation

- If Show Playlists are complete, then skip this section and proceed to Section 3.5.
- Creating a Show Playlist to be ingested on the screen:
 - Go to the Show Playlist Builder tab.
 - Click the New button followed by New Playlist.
 - On the left part of the window, select the composition (CPL) items to add to the playlist.
 - Select consecutive CPLs by using the shift key or use the "Ctrl" button to select multiple non-consecutive CPLs.
 - Click on the Add to Show Playlist button to add all the selected CPLs to the SPL panel.
 - The available content will appear.

<u>Note</u>: If no composition is visible on the left part of the tab, click the Refresh button.

- The two arrow buttons allow the user to change the order of the CPLs in the Show Playlist panel. Refer to Section 4.4 for SPL creation details.
- To add an automation cue to a CPL present in the Show Playlist:
 - Select the desired CPL on the right part of the Show Playlist Builder window.
 - Select the desired automation cue on the left part of the window.
 - Click the Add to Show Playlist button.
 - The user will be asked to define Automation Cue parameters. See Section 4.4.3.2.2 for detailed information.

Note: Trigger Cues can be added to the Show Playlist. Refer to Section 4.4.3.2.3 for the related procedure.

- Save the Show Playlist when finished by clicking on the Save button on the top of the tab.
- If there is any content you wish to prevent from being deleted, click on the Edit Locking button, check the desired content, and click Save.
- Creating a Show Playlist Pack:
 - The TMS also allows the creation of re-usable playlist packs. Click on the New button in the show playlist builder; this will bring a pop-up menu with the option: New Playlist Pack.
 - Click the Add Pack button.
 - Enter a pack name or select among the pre-defined playlist packs (PRESHOS_PACK, TRAILER_PACK, FEATURE_PACK, or POSTSHOW_PACK, Figure 5).

Monitoring	Scheduling	KDM Overview	Show Playlist Builder	S 😡 Man	creen agement	Content Management	Control Panel		Quit
🗌 whole multiplex		Sort	By Format	est SPL	<u>N</u> ew	٩	pen	<u>S</u> ave	<u>D</u> elete
 → →	0	Edit Locking	Add to Show	Playlist	4	R		Add <u>P</u>	ack <u>R</u> emove
😵 all elements	5				Start Time	Packs			
Advertisement FLAT_COKE-FLIGHT Carmike_Digital-Fe DLP-LOGO_ADV_F FLAT_COKE-FLIGHT TDC-LOGO_F_51_21 DESPICABLE-ME-31 TDC-3D_LOGO_F_5 SCOPE_COKE-FLIGHT TDC-3D_LOGO_F_5 SCOPE_COKE-FLIGHT DESPICABLE-ME-32 ACCESS-IT-CALIBR DLP-LOGO_ADV_S Carmike_Digital-KM-23 SCOPE_COKE-FLIGHT TDC-3D_LOGO_5_5_2 STDC-3D_LOGO_S_5_2 SDESPICABLE-ME-33 TDC-3D_LOGO_S_5_2 DESPICABLE-ME-33 TDC-3D_LOGO_5_5_2 DESPICABLE-ME-33 CurtainsPolicy-Ger UACC-SilencePleas Marcus-Holiday200 CCTSC-WeAreCine S212010_NCMCNK Ga automation cuet 3D_FLAT_1920 3D_FLAT_START AI	I-02_MeanTroy iature-Presentation EN-XX_US_51_2K_1 I-01_ItsMine-1951 K_20080303_TDC D-DLP_ADV_F_EN-3 1_2K_20081119_T1 1_2K_20081114_T1 1_2K_20081114_T1 D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-3 ATION_TST_S_ENX EN-XX_US_51_2K_1 iature-Presentation D-DLP_ADV_S_12 X_20080303_TDC 1_2K_20081114_T1 D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-3 inchastrophysec inchastrophysec S MCMADV_3D_F S	n_FLAT 20080818_DLX vs2008 XX_US_51_2K_UP_2 DC_i3D-GB DC_i3D i1vs2008 XX_US_51_2K_UP_2 20080818_DLX n_SCOPE (_AIXD_20070608_I 1951vs2008 DC_i3D XX_US_51_2K_UP_2 DC_i3D-GB XX_US_51_2K_UP_2	0100317_DLA_i3D-ng 0100317_DLA_i3D-nf Pack Name: PRES 0100317_DLA_i3D-gk 0100317_DLA_i3D-ng	b show_pack		<u>Ok</u> <u>C</u> a	ncel		
3D_SCOPE_1920					L	Р	roperties: ShowP	Plavlist. 2D	
DD SCOPE 2048					S		,	,	

LMS Disk Usage: 3977 GB of 5587 GB Wednesday June 13 2012, 11:35:44 AM

An item representing the name of the pack will be added and highlighted in green (Figure 6).

Monitoring Scheduling KDM Overview	Show Playlist Builder Management	Content Management	Control Panel			🔀 Quit
whole multiplex	Sort By Format 💌 Ingest SPL	<u>N</u> ew	<u>O</u> pen	<u>S</u> ave	De	elete
🔦 🐗 🕜 🔞 🧯 Edit Locking	Add to Show Playlist	€ ♥ 🔍		1	Add <u>P</u> ack	<u>R</u> emove
advertisement TDC-LOGO_F_51_2K_20080303_TDC FLAT_COKE-FLIGHT-01_ItsMine-1951vs2008 DIP-LOGO_ADV_F_EN-XX_US_51_2K_20080818_DLX Carmike_Digital-Feature-Presentation_FLAT FLAT_COKE-FLIGHT-02_MeanTroy TDC-3D_LOGO_F_51_2K_20081114_TDC_i3D DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_F_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 TDC-3D_LOGO_F_51_2K_20081119_TDC_i3D-GB DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_F_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 TDC-3D_LOGO_F_51_2K_2008030_TDC SCOPE_COKE-FLIGHT-02_Heid/Klum-1951vs2008 ACCESS-IT-CALIBRATION_TST_5_ENXX_US-NR-51_2K_2007 DESPICABLE-ME-2D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 ACCESS-IT-CALIBRATION_TST_5_ENXX_US-NR-51_2K_2008 ACCESS-IT-CALIBRATION_TST_5_ENXX_US-51_2K_UP_201 ACCESS-IT-CALIBRATION_TST_5_ENXX_US-51_2K_UP_201 ACCESS-IT-CALIBRATION_TST_5_ENXX_US-51_2K_UP_201 Carmike_Digital-Feature-Presentation_SCOPE DLP-LOGO_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_20080818_DLX TDC-3D_LOGO_S_51_2K_20081119_TDC_i3D DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 DESPICABLE-ME-3D-DLP_ADV_S_EN-XX_US_51_2K_UP_201 CCTSC-WAARECINEMEACORCEPTS <td< th=""><th>00317_DLA_j3D-ngb Show Playlist available: BOLT_FTR habs_spl PRESHOW AUD1 scope_movies test test2 TEST_3D test3d add TEST_4K testdolby_193 TEST_FLAT_INGEST test_ingest test marker Name: FLAT_PRESHOW_PACK1 Export</th><th>Start Time Packs PRESI 00:00:00 TDC-LOGO 00:00:20 FLAT_COKE 00:01:52 DLP-LOGO 00:02:15 Carmike_D</th><th>HOW_PACK F_51_2K_20080303_TDC FLIGHT-01_ItsMine-1953 ADV_F_EN-XX_US_51_2K igital-Feature-Presentation Cancel</th><th>Ivs2008 20080818_DLX pn_FLAT</th><th></th><th></th></td<>	00317_DLA_j3D-ngb Show Playlist available: BOLT_FTR habs_spl PRESHOW AUD1 scope_movies test test2 TEST_3D test3d add TEST_4K testdolby_193 TEST_FLAT_INGEST test_ingest test marker Name: FLAT_PRESHOW_PACK1 Export	Start Time Packs PRESI 00:00:00 TDC-LOGO 00:00:20 FLAT_COKE 00:01:52 DLP-LOGO 00:02:15 Carmike_D	HOW_PACK F_51_2K_20080303_TDC FLIGHT-01_ItsMine-1953 ADV_F_EN-XX_US_51_2K igital-Feature-Presentation Cancel	Ivs2008 20080818_DLX pn_FLAT		
			Properties: Sho	wPlaylist, 2D		

Figure 6: SPL Pack Added

- Proceed by adding CPLs, automation cues and trigger cues.
- Save the Show Playlist Pack when finished by clicking on the Save button on the top of the tab.
- Once saved, the SPL pack will show, in purple, in the left panel, under Playlist Packs. The playlist packs can then be added to another SPL like any other CPL or cue item (Figure 7).

Monitoring Scheduling KDM Show Playlist Show Playlist Man	creen Content Control Management Control Quit
_ whole multiplex Sort By Format + Ingest SPL	New Open Save Delete
📀 🚳 💽 🛓 Kit Locking 🗼 Add to Show Playlist	Add Pack
Playlist packs	Show Playlist Packs
FLAT_PRESHOW_PACK1	FLAT_PRESHOW_PACK1
FLAT_TRAILER_PACK1	-00:00:00 TDC-LOGO_F_51_2K_20080303_TDC
	- 00:01:52 DLP-LOGO ADV F EN-XX US 51 2K 20080818 DLX
	-00:02:15 Carmike_Digital-Feature-Presentation_FLAT
	FLAT_TRAILER_PACK1
	- 00:02:24 Nightmare-Elm-St_TLR-2_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_WR_20100217_TDC
	-00:06:48 LETTERS-TO-JULIET_TLR-1_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_SUM_20091106_DLA
	-00:09:19 SPLICE_TLR-1_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_WR_20100329_MPI
	- 00:11:35 GET-HIM-GREEK_TLR-TR_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_UP_20100210_UDS - 00:14:05 Kick-Ass TLR-4A F EN-XX US-GB 51 2K LION 20100316 TDC
	-00:15:17 FLASH-GENIUS_TLR_1_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_UP_20080711_ASC
	Properties: ShowPlaylist, 2D
LMS Disk (Usage: 3977 GB of 5587 GB Wednesday June 13 2012, 11:43:03 AM

Figure 7: SPL Packs Added

3.5 SPL Scheduling

To schedule a Show Playlist playback, follow the steps below:

- Go to the Scheduling tab. See Section 4.2 for additional guidance about this tab.
- Click on the Add Schedule button.
- The following window will appear (Figure 8):

Show Playlist list-	Add Schedule	- ×	
box	Show Playlist 1 ELEMENT	•	Date of Schedule
Screen Number list- box	Auditorium Screen-01 Week Mon 14 - Sun 20 Schedule X Mon Tue Wed Thu Starts time :), May 2012 →	Time of Schedule
	Estimated ends time:	09:27	

Figure 8: Add Schedule Window

- Select the Show Playlist that needs to be scheduled within the Show Playlist box.
- Choose the Screen Number and the date/time that is to be scheduled.
- Click on the Add button when finished.
- The new schedule will appear on the main window of the Scheduling tab.
- If the SPL is not on the SMS, then the TMS will initiate the SPL transfer to the SMS.

3.6 Uploading KDMs

A Show Playlist might contain encrypted CPLs. To identify an encrypted CPL, look for the lock icon to

the left of its name in the Show Playlist builder window (). Each encrypted CPL requires a valid KDM. If this is the case, make sure that a valid KDM exists for each encrypted CPL in order to be able to perform the playback.

- Go to the KDM Overview tab. See Section 4.3 for additional guidance on this tab.
- Check in the displayed list of available KDMs to see if there is one for each encrypted CPL in the Show Playlist.
- If a KDM is missing, click on the KDM Upload button in order to upload it and then follow the steps.
- Use the Browse button to select the proper KDM folder and upload the KDM (Figure 18).

3.7 Content Management

The Content Management tab will display the status of all ingest jobs. It will show the progress of the current jobs and it will list all pending jobs. The TMS can execute transfers to four screens simultaneously. The Content Management tab will allow users to cancel a CPL or SPL transfer.

3.8 Logout

To prevent unauthorized changes to settings and scheduling, click logout.

- Go to the Control Panel tab and click on the User icon.
- The following window will appear (Figure 9):

	Click Cancel to enter whithout logging in. Manager: Allow you to execute all actions Admin: Allow you to execute all actions and modify settings				
Logout Button	Username: admin	•			
	Password:				
	Logout	<u>O</u> K <u>C</u> ancel			

Figure 9: Authentication Window

• Click on Logout.

4 TMS GUI Tabs Description

4.1 Monitoring Tab

- To enter the Monitoring tab, click on Monitoring on the top of the GUI.
- The Monitoring window is composed of two different parts (Figure 10):
 - 1. The top part lists all the screens added to the TMS together with their states: offline, online, and playing.
 - 2. The bottom part displays information about the selected screens.

4.1.1 Presentation

Screens are listed vertically under the screen column header. Each screen is identified with an icon displaying the screen number inside it. The icon's color and shape reflects the current status of the SMS. Below are the different icons used:

- I :Blue square indicates online and idle status.
 :Green triangle indicates online and playing content.
 - :Red hexagon indicates offline.
 - :Orange square indicates that the media block is disconnected.
- A smaller icon can appear next to the screen number when the available free space drops below a certain threshold.
 - A warning icon in yellow indicates that the configured warning threshold (11% 20%) for the remaining free space was reached.



Figure 10: TMS GUI - Monitoring Tab

Note: The small warning/critical icon can be used to display some other warnings. Point the mouse over the screen icon to display the description of the errors or warnings.

To the right of the screen icon, the following information is displayed only when the screen is in playback mode.

- 1. A Show Playlist name is displayed in conjunction with one or more bars beneath. The bars represent the different clips in the SPL. The short bar is for trailers and the long bar is for features.
 - Hovering over the name will list the content in each SPL.
 - The letters above the bars indicate what type of content the clip contains:
 - FL= Flat
 - SC= Scope
 - HD= High Definition
 - FU= Full
 - PA= Pattern
- 2. Elapsed time.
- 3. Remaining time.
- 4. Next Show.
- 5. Projector.

- The last two columns can appear and disappear by clicking on the Arrow icon.
- To access the Screen Management tab associated with the selected screen, double-click on the screen icon and the GUI will display the Screen Management tab (Section 4.5).
- Using the mouse to hover over the SPL name or the clip bars will list the content found in the SPL.

4.1.2 Screen Information

The bottom part will display information specific to the server on a particular screen (Figure 10). By selecting a screen on the top, the following information will be displayed:

- 1) Server Serial Number.
- 2) Software and Firmware version.
- 3) Total disk space; used and free. The color of the free space will change if it drops below a certain threshold. The color yellow indicates a free space between 10% and 20%. The color red indicates free space below 10% of total disk space.

4.2 Scheduling Tab

4.2.1 Standard Use

- To enter the Scheduling tab, click on Scheduling on the top of the GUI at any time during the TMS GUI usage.
- The Scheduling tab is illustrated below (Figure 11):



- Edit Links button: This will link a specific movie name to an SPL.
- Previous Day and Next Day button: These buttons will show the schedule by the selected view period. It can be daily, weekly, monthly, or yearly.
- Date Selection field: This will allow the user to specify the starting day of the schedule.
- Refresh button: This will refresh the scheduling window.
- View field drop-down menu: This will specify the period to display in the scheduling window starting with the day specified in the date selection.
- Delete Schedule button: This will delete the selected entry from the schedule. The selected entry will be deleted immediately without confirmation.
- Delete All Schedules button: This will delete the entire schedule on both the TMS and the screens associated with the system. A confirmation is required in order for the operation to be completed. Only a manager login can execute this operation. The operation will delete the schedule only; no content will be lost in the process.
- Add Schedule button: This will allow the user to manually schedule an SPL on a specific screen at a specific time and day.
- The Scheduling window will list all the entries starting from the date in the Date Selection up to the period selected in the View drop-down menu.
- Schedules that have already passed will be shown with the line highlighted in gray.

4.2.1.1 Entry Description

- Each entry takes one line and is composed of four fields as listed below:
 - Date and Time
 - Screen Name
 - Movie Name
 - Notes
- The font color will reflect the status of the entry.
 - A black font is ready and the red font indicates an error.
 - A gray font is for past entries.
- The error type will be reflected in the notes.

4.2.2 Manager/Administrator Use

If the user is logged in as either manager or admin, they will be able to modify the settings. In this tab, it corresponds to:

- A schedule addition
- Schedule(s) deletion
- Links editing

To add a schedule, click on Add Schedule:

• The following window will appear (Figure 12):

how Playlist	1 ELEMENT		
uditorium	Screen-01		
•	Mon 14 - Sun 20), May 201	2 🏓
Schedule -	Tue 🗌 Wed 🗌 Thu	🗌 Fri 🗌 Sat	Sun
Schedule X Mon Starts time	Tue 🔲 Wed 📄 Thu :	Fri Sat	: Sun
Schedule X Mon Starts time Estimated e	Tue Wed Thu : ends time:	Fri Sat 09:27 09:27 09:27 09:27	: Sun

Figure 12: Add Schedule Window

- To schedule a playback of a Show Playlist for a given auditorium and time, click on Add when finished.
- The new schedule will appear in the schedule list.
- Select the appropriate View mode from the drop-down menu.

To delete an existing schedule, select it in the schedule list and click on Delete Schedule.

- The schedule will disappear.
- To delete all the schedules, click on the Delete All Schedules button.

To link a movie listed in the POS file to a specific Show Playlist, click on the Edit Links button (Figure 13).



Figure 13: Edit Links Window – Unlinked View

- The left side provides the list of movies listed in the POS File. This largely depends on whether or not the Show Playlist is linked with the POS file.
- If the Unlinked button is clicked, the Movies window will display the list of movies that are not linked to any Show Playlist.
- Select one movie from the POS File and one from the Show Playlist and click on Link.

- The Show Playlist will be linked to the movie title defined in the POS File.
- The playback of the Show Playlist will be performed according to the schedule of the linked movies title defined in the POS File.
- To view the movie titles already linked to Show Playlists, click on Linked on the bottom of the Edit Links window.
- The following window will be displayed (Figure 14):

	POS Title		SPL Title
	DIGITAL 2ND PRINT RACE T DIGITAL DUPLICITY DIGITAL LAST HOUSE ON TH DIGITAL NEW IN TOWN	O WITCH MOUNTAIN	The_Village_en_Engl Serenity_FL_05 Stealth_SC_01 Stealth_SC_02
	DIGITAL RACE TO WITCH M	OUNTAIN	Madagascar HD 06
	DIGITAL TAKEN		Magagascar_HU_09
Unlink	Unlinked	L <u>i</u> nked	<u>A</u> II
Bullon	Lun Dan Lu		Posot linking

Figure 14: Edit Links Window – Linked View

- From this window, the user can select one title and unlink it by clicking on the Unlink button.
- To view the whole list of movie titles listed in the POS file, whether they are linked or unlinked, click on All.
- The Movies window will reflect the whole movie list, indicating the movie titles that are unlinked in red, as presented below (Figure 15):



Figure 15: Edit Links Window – Linked View

4.3 KDM Overview Tab

- To enter the KDM Overview tab, click on KDM Overview on the top of the GUI at any time during the TMS GUI usage.
- The KDM Overview tab will display all the KDMs available on the network using a color code to indicate their validity.
- Below are the color codes and their correspondences:
 - A green line corresponds to a KDM valid for more than 48 hours.
 - A yellow line corresponds to a KDM valid for less than 48 hours.
 - A red line corresponds to a KDM that is not currently valid, but will be valid in the future.

KDIVI Opioau	Monitoring	Scheduling 🔂 KDM Show Playlis Overview Builder	st 🛛 Screen Cont Management Manage	ent Control ment Panel	🚫 🛑 💥 Quit	
	KDMs <u>U</u> pload				E Legend	
	Screen	CPL ·	Starts	Ends		
	screen-05	he Village (French with Danish s	. Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		ام مر م م م
	screen-04	The Village (French with Danish s	. Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		Legena
Indicates which	Screen-03	The Village (French with Danish s	. Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		Button
screen the KDM	screen-01	The Village (French with Danish s	. Sat May 09 2009, 23:00	Sat Jun 12 2010, 23.00		
	screen-05	The Village (English with Chinese .	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00	Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
can be used on	Screen-04	The Village (English with Chinese .	Mon Mar 08 2010 00:00	Wed Apr 07 2010, 23:00		KDM
	Screen-03	The Village (English with Chinese .	Mon Feb 08 2010, 00:00	Mon Feb 08 2010, 23:00		Overview
Composition	Screen-03	The Village (English with Chinese .	Fri Jan 08 2010, 00:00	Sat Feb 06 2010, 23:00		Tah
Dist	Screen-03	The Village (English with Chinese .	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		Tab
Play List-	screen-01	The Village (English with Chinese .	Sat May 09 2009, 23:00	Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00		
Content Title	screen-09	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN	Sat May 09 2009, 23:00	Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00		
	screen-05	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
	bereen es					
Delete	screen-04	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
Delete	screen-04 Screen-03	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Secondary Eul Movie with Sp. Subtit	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Set May 09 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
Delete Expired KDMs	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-09 screen-05	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit.	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
Delete Expired KDMs Button	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-09 screen-05	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit.	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00		
Delete Expired KDMs Button	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-09 screen-05 Screen-04 screen-04	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit.	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00	 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		
Delete Expired KDMs Button	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-09 screen-05 screen-04 screen-04 Screen-03	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit.	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00	 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		
Delete Expired KDMs Button Delete	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-09 screen-05 screen-04 screen-04 Screen-03 screen 05	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Madagascar	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00	 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		
Delete Expired KDMs Button Delete	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05 screen-04 screen-04 Screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Madagascar Madagascar	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		
Delete Expired KDMs Button Delete KDMs	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05 screen-04 screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05 screen-04	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Madagascar Madagascar	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00) Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		
Delete Expired KDMs Button Delete KDMs Button	screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05 screen-04 screen-04 Screen-03 screen-05 screen-04 Screen-04 Screen-04	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtit. Madagascar Madagascar Madagascar	Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Sat May 09 2009, 23:00 Wed Aug 19 2009, 23:00	 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 Sat Jun 12 2010, 23:00 Sun Sep 19 2010, 23:00 		

LMS Disk Usage: 3830 GB of 9303 GB Monday February 08 2010, 10:18:30 AM

Figure 16: KDM Overview Tab

- The first column indicates on which screen the KDM can be used, and the next columns indicate the Content Title of the corresponding Composition Playlist. It also indicates the start and end dates of the KDM validity window (Figure 16).
- The following color significance (Figure 17) is available by clicking the Legend button (Figure 16).



Figure 17: KDM Highlight Window

- To delete a KDM, select it in the KDM list and click the Delete KDM button (Figure 16).
- To delete all expired KDMs, click the Delete Expired KDM button (Figure 16).
- The KDMs Upload button (Figure 16) allows for ingestion of KDMs from the TMS (USB or local directory). Use the Browse button to select the folder from which to ingest the KDMs (Figure 18).

(Screen Name screen-09 screen-09	KDM Serenity Full Movie with Sp Madagascar	Starts . Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009,	08:00 08:00	Ends Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00		Browse Upload <u>A</u> ll	Browse Button
List of	screen-08 screen-08 screen-08 screen-08	The Village (English with Ch Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp Madagascar	Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009,	08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00	Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00		Upload <u>S</u> elected	Upload All Button
available KDMs in the	screen-07 screen-07 screen-07 screen-07	The Village (English with Ch Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp Madagascar The Village (English with Ch.	Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009,	08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00	Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00		Uploading 3 of 3	Upload Selected
selected folder	screen-06 screen-06 screen-06	Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp Madagascar	Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009,	08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00	Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00			Button
	screen-03 screen-03 screen-03 screen-03	The Village (English with Ch Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN Serenity Full Movie with Sp Madagascar	Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009, Tue Mar 03 2009,	08:00 08:00 08:00 08:00	Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00 Fri May 01 2009, 21:00	4		Button
	Status Vuploading of Vuploading of Vuploadin	of KDM Madagascar to screen sc of KDM The Village (English with of KDM Scropity Eul Mayia with	reen-03 was succes Chinese subtitle) to	sful o screen	screen-03 was successful			
	V Uploading of V Uploading of V	of KDM Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN to scre of KDM Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN to scre	een screen-06 was s een screen-06 was s	successfu successfu	il Il			

Figure 18: KDM Upload Window

- To upload one or more KDMs, select it and click the Upload Selected button.
- To upload all KDMs, click the Upload All button.
- Click the Close button to close the KDMs Upload window.

Note: Right clicking on an Uploading of KDM line in the bottom part of the tab will show a menu to clear the status logs or delete the selected message (Figure 19).

Uploading of KDM The Village (English with Chinese	e subtitle) to screen scr	een-03 was successful	
✓ Uploading of KDM Serenity Full Movie with Sp. S ✓ Uploading of KDM Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN to screen s	delete message clear status logs	was successful	
Uploading of KDM Stealth 4K, 5.1 EN to screen screen	een-06 was successful	-	

Figure 19: KDMs Upload Window – Right Click Menu

4.4 Show Playlist Builder Tab

4.4.1 Tab Overview

- To enter the Show Playlist Builder tab, click on Show Playlist Builder at any time during the TMS GUI usage (Figure 20).
- The Show Playlist Builder tab contains:
 - A left part with all the Digital Cinema Packages (DCP) that were found on the LMS: features, trailers, and advertisements. They are together with the available automation cues and trigger cues. The Whole Multiplex feature will show all the available DCPs found on one or more screens. All content that is shown in bold font exists on the LMS and on one or more screens. Content with a fine line does not exist on the LMS.
 - A right part used to display the content of a given Show Playlist, that is already created or existing. A Show Playlist is described in the next step.

Note: Content type is differentiated by color and font. Pointing to a certain content will make an informative tool-tip showing the format and location available (Figure 20).



Figure 20: Show Playlist Builder Tab

4.4.2 Colors

Different colors represent different formats in the Show Playlist Builder:

- Flat:
 - 2D is dark blue.
 - 3D is light blue.
- Scope:
 - 2D is dark green.
 - 3D is light green.
- HD:
 - 2D is dark brown.
 - 3D is light brown/orange.
- Full:
 - 2D is dark red.
 - 3D is light red.

4.4.3 Show Playlist Creation

A Show Playlist defines a succession of DCPs and Automation Cues. It provides the events chain to be taken into account for the playback of a show. A Show Playlist can be newly created or an existing Show Playlist can be opened and edited.

4.4.3.1 Principle

The Show Playlist Builder tab allows the users to create their own Show Playlist from the elements listed in the Contents window.

- To add an element to the Show Playlist, select it. The element will be reverse highlighted.
 - There are two ways to find content in the tab.
 - To search for a specific CPL, click on the Find Content button (Figure 22) and type in the name of the CPL (Figure 21).

nd		Eind Next
Direction ——— 〇 <u>U</u> p	• Down	Add to show playlist
		Close

Figure 21: Find Content Window

• To filter the CPLs, click on the Filter button (Figure 22). The user can filter by advertisements, automation cues, features, patterns, playlist packs, policy, psa, rating, shorts, teasers, tests, trailers, transnational, trigger cues, and a custom search.



Figure 22: Find Content Options

- There is also a Sorting Option drop-down list that allows the user to sort the content on the left side of the window by name, format, and locked material (Figure 22). See Section 4.4.5 for more information on locked material.
- Click on the Add to Show Playlist button to add the highlighted CPL.
- The element will appear on the right part of the window. Repeating this operation with all the required elements will lead to a Show Playlist (Figure 23):



Figure 23: Show Playlist Creation

If the user is trying to add content with different formats, the Dissimilar Content window will
appear asking the user if they would like to continue. Click Add Anyway to add the content to
the SPL regardless of its format.

🗙 Dissimilar Co	ontent Format			L ×
	EW-TERRACE_FTR_S_ has 'scop format from	EN-XX_US-13_ be' format that i the current SPL	51-EN_2K_SPE_2009 is different format 'flat'.	0430_DLX'
🗌 do not display	this message again			
			Add Anyway	<u>S</u> kip
	Figure 24: Dissi	milar Conte	ent Window	

- If an element needs to be removed from the Show Playlist, select it in the Show Playlist window and click on Remove.
- The Ingest SPL button (Figure 23) forces the SPL ingest on a selected screen right away. The SPL ingest window that will appear is presented below (Figure 25):



Figure 25: Show Playlist Ingest Window

- Select the SPL to ingest and the destination screen, then click on the Start Ingest button (Figure 25).
- Clicking on the SPL Properties button (Figure 23) will make the SPL Properties window visible (Figure 26).



Figure 26: SPL Properties Window

- If necessary, change the name of the SPL and set to 3D SPL or 2D SPL using the Display Mode list box (Figure 27).
 - The default setting is 2D SPL.



Figure 27: SPL Name and Display Mode Settings

- To hide the SPL Properties window, click on the Close button.
- Click the Save button, located on the top of the tab, to record the SPL settings (Figure 27).
- If it is not saved, the SPL settings will be ignored.

4.4.3.2 Element Types

Different types of elements are available:

- Audio-visual content: feature, test content, trailer, rating, and black.
- Automation cues: Macro Automation cues from generation based on the Macro Editor application.
- Trigger cues: based on the generation of the Macro Editor application.

4.4.3.2.1 Audio-Visual Content

When audio-visual content is encrypted, a lock icon is displayed at the beginning of its line. It means that a corresponding KDM will be required to play content (Figure 28):



Figure 28: Encrypted Content Tag

4.4.3.2.2 Automation Cues

Macro Automation Cues can be added to an element of the Show Playlist.

- Select the element in the right part of the window.
- Select the desired Automation Cue on the left part of the window.
- Click on the Add to Show Playlist button.
- The user will be asked to define the offset of this Automation Cue from the beginning or the end of the chosen element using the following window (Figure 29):



Figure 29: Automation Cue Offset Definition

- Click the OK button when finished.
- The Macro Automation Cue will appear under the element on the right part of the tab (Figure 30):



Figure 30: Automation Cue Added to an Element

• This operation is repeatable for the same element or for another element of the Show Playlist. 4.4.3.2.3 Trigger Cue

A Trigger Cue allows for the planning of the execution of Macro Automation Cues when the underlying condition happens.

For example, if a Trigger Cue is based on the condition, "Wait for GPI #1 ON," the user can link a specific Macro Automation Cue as presented above in order to execute such Macro when GPI #1 is asserted.

The user has the choice to program a Trigger Cue to be available during the whole Show Playlist or only during a specific Show Playlist element.

To define a Trigger Cue for the whole Show Playlist:

- Select a Trigger Cue from the left side of the GUI.
- Click on Add to Show Playlist.
- The following window will appear (Figure 31):

	Select an automation cue to execute on trigger: Alarm Enable	
Automation cues window containing the list of available Macro Automation Cues.	automation cues 3D_FLAT_1920 3D_FLAT_1998 3D_SCOPE_1920 3D_SCOPE_2048 48FPS MODE CREDIT DCL_XYZ_FLAT DCL_XYZ_FLAT DCL_XYZ_SCOPE END	
Check-box to make the Trigger Cue available during the whole Show Playlist.	Scope the trigger is available for all elements of the ShowPLayI the trigger is only available for the element: Madagascar <u>Cance</u>	v ist el

Figure 31: Trigger Cue Addition – Whole Show Playlist

- Select the Macro Automation Cue to associate with the Trigger Cue by clicking on the Automation Cues window.
- The default scope for the Trigger Cue is all the elements of the Show Playlist.
- Click the OK button.
- Creating a Trigger cue for only one element of the Show Playlist involves the following:
 - Select the element on the Show Playlist on the GUI.
 - Select the Trigger Cue and add it to the left window of the GUI.
 - Click on Add to Show Playlist.
 - The same window as in Figure 31 will be displayed.
- Associate a Macro Automation Cue using the same process described above.
- Check on the box to indicate that the trigger is only available for the element.
- The line below contains the name of the element that was selected (Figure 32).

	Select an automation cue to execute on trigger: Alarm Enable	
	automation cues	
	3D_FLAT_1920	
	3D_FLAT_1998	
	3D_SCOPE_1920	
	3D_SCOPE_2048	
	48FPS MODE	
	CREDIT	
	DCI_XYZ_FLAT	
	DCI_XYZ_SCOPE	
Chaoly to make	END	
Check to make	FEATURE	
the Trigger Cue	_ Scope	Name of element
available during	• the trigger is available for all elements of the ShowPLaylist	during which the
the selected	the trigger is only available for the element:	Trigger Cue will be
	 e die digger is only available for the element.	
element	Madagascar	available
·		
	<u>O</u> k <u>C</u> ancel	

Figure 32: Trigger Cue Addition – Single Element

4.4.3.2.4 Element Recording

Two arrows allow the user to change the order of the elements in the Show Playlist (Figure 33 and Figure 34):



Figure 33: Arrow Pointing to the Top



Figure 34: Arrow Pointing to the Bottom

Using these arrows allows for each element to be either moved to the top or to the bottom of the Show Playlist.

- To move an element to the top, select it and click on the arrow pointing to the top.
- To move an element to the bottom, select it and click on the arrow pointing down.
- Repeat these steps until the correct order of the elements is obtained.

4.4.3.2.5 Refresh Buttons

Two Refresh buttons are available in this tab (Figure 36).

- The Refresh Contents List button will do a quick refresh without rescanning the content.
- The Refresh Ingest Servers button is used to synchronize the contents view with the content on the ingest servers. This is necessary to show the newly transferred content on the LMS/ingest servers. When clicking on this button, the following screen will appear (Figure 35):

00 %

Figure 35: Ingest Servers Scan Window

• When scan is complete, click the Close button.

4.4.3.3 Properties Button

The user can view the properties of the elements of the Show Playlist by selecting one of the elements, which is located on the right part of the window and clicking the Element Information button as illustrated in Figure 36. Properties of the Automation events can also be edited using this button.



Figure 36: Refresh and Element Information Buttons

- With Trigger Cues and Automation Cues, the user will be able to edit the properties that were asked for when the element was added to the Show Playlist.
- With audio-visual elements, a window listing the characteristics of the element will be displayed (Figure 37).

Compositi	on Playlist Properties	_ 🗆 ×
UUID	b82aec96-7c5a-46fb-9fb0-0ae37b77cc0d	
Content Title	BASTERDS_TLR-B_F_EN-XX_UK_51_2K_UP_200	90206_ASC
Content Kind	trailer	
Duration	00:01:08	
Size	1.69 GB	
-Picture	Unknown (65535 x 65535)	
Rate	241	
Course d		
Channels	0	
Quantization	0 bits	
e		(r
		Qk

Figure 37: Example of Information Related to Audio-Visual Content

Note: Some of the content (Encoding, Channels, and Quantization) will not be available if the content is not present on any of the screen servers.

4.4.3.4 Show Playlist Saving

When a Show Playlist has been created according to the procedure presented above, it can be saved using the Save button assuming that the user is logged in as admin or manager. Click the Save button to save the Show Playlist (Figure 38). Clicking the Save Button will also give the user the option to export a SPL from a USB (Figure 39).







4.4.3.5 New Show Playlist

• If a new playlist needs to be created, click on the New button (Figure 38). This action will remove the Show Playlist display on the right part of the user display.

Note: Save the current Show Playlist before clicking on New, otherwise it will be lost.

4.4.4 Show Playlist Opening

If a Show Playlist already exists, it can be opened using the Open button (Figure 38). The Show Playlist will be displayed into the right part of the user interface as if it was created according to the procedure presented above. Clicking the Open button will also give the user the option to import a SPL to a USB (Figure 40).

(U)	j≊Open		_ 🗆 X
	Show Playlist available:		
	1 ELEMENT		-
	2D FLAT TEMPLATE		211
	2D SCOPE TEMPLATE		8.83 8.83
	3D FLAT TEMPLATE		
	Ad_test_macro		
	Closed_Caption-SPL		
	СТР		
	FeaturePack1		
	FLAT_TRAILERS		
	imported		
	LettersToJuliet		
	MAcro_adver_test		
	Madagascar_HD_06		
luna in a inf	Madagascar_HD_09		
Button	Name: enter a search pattern		
	Import	Open	Cancel

Figure 40: Import Button

4.4.5 Deletion Operations

To perform the deletion operations, the user needs to have manager or admin privileges.

- To delete content from the server, select the content to delete from the left part of the window.
 - Click on the Delete Content button (Figure 38).
- To delete existing Show Playlists, click on the Delete existing SPLs button (Figure 38).
 - The following window will appear allowing the user to select which Show Playlist(s) to delete (Figure 41).

Show Playlist available:		
Madagascar06		
Madagascar_HD_06		
Madagascar_HD_06-1		
Madagascar_HD_09		
Madagascar_HD_11		551
Madagascar_HD_11-1		511
NewPlaylist_JOb		
Serenity03		
Serenity_FL_03		
Serenity_FL_05		
Serenity_FL_10		
Stealth_SC_01		
Stealth_SC_02		
Stealth_SC_04		-
Name:		
Select Outdated SPLs	Delete	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 41: Delete SPL Window

• Select the Show Playlists to delete by holding the "Ctrl" key on the keyboard. This function will allow users to select multiple SPLs. Or click the Select Outdated SPLs button to select all SPLs that are not linked (Figure 42):

Show Playlist available:	
Madagascar06	
Madagascar_HD_06	
Madagascar_HD_06-1	
Madagascar_HD_09	
Madagascar_HD_11	100
Madagascar_HD_11-1	949
NewPlaylist_JOb	
Serenity03	
Serenity_FL_03	
Serenity_FL_05	
Serenity_FL_10	
Stealth_SC_01	
Stealth_SC_02	
Stealth_SC_04	
Name: illage(English)_HD_07+TheVillage(French)_HD_08+Villa	age_Test
Select Outdated SPLs	ancel

Figure 42: Delete SPL Window - SPLs Selected

- Click the Delete button to perform the deletion.
- A user with admin privileges can prevent any other user from deleting specific CPLs by locking it using the Edit Locking button.
 - Click on the Edit Locking button, select the content to be locked, and click Save Locking (Figure 43).
- If the content has been locked using the Edit Locking button, and the user tries to delete the content, a window will appear telling the user that the content is protected (Figure 44).



LMS Disk Usage: 6292 GB of 9303 GB Monday May 14 2012, 9:11:42 AM

Figure 43: Edit/Save Locking



Figure 44: Content Deletion

4.5 Screen Management Tab

4.5.1 Tab Overview

- To enter the Screen Management tab, click on Screen Management on the top of the GUI.
- The Screen Management tab allows different functions depending on the logged in status. If the user is not logged in as manager or admin, the tab will only allow the user to view the current Show Playlist playback, on a specific screen.
- It is divided into two tabs: the Playback tab and the Control tab.

4.5.1.1 Playback Tab

• The screen number can be selected using the list-box available on the top of the tab (Figure 45):



Figure 45: Screen Management: Playback Tab

- The left part of tab displays the Show Playlists and the Composition Playlists (CPLs). Both are available on the selected screen in the Show Playlists window and in the CPLs window (Figure 45).
 - Clicking on the Filter button will allow the user to filter the icons into advertisements, features, policies, psa, shorts, teasers, tests, and a custom search.
- The Playback window (the right part of the window) contains the Show Playlist progress listbox. The list-box displays the current playback position within the Show Playlist using a green flag. The elements already played are flagged using a yellow mark whereas the elements that are not played for the moment do not have any flag at all (Figure 46).



Figure 46: Show Playlist Progress List-box

4.5.2 Applying Manager/Administrator Accounts

When logged in as manager or admin, the user will be able to navigate within the Show Playlist. To navigate within the Show Playlist, the user must be in Pause mode. The user is able to load a Show Playlist and manage CPLs and SPLs (Figure 47).

Screen-02
<complex-block> Projecti network Provide the Park (13) Provide (14) <pprovide (14)<="" p=""> Provide (14) Provid</pprovide></complex-block>

Figure 47: Screen Management Tab - Manager Account

4.5.2.1 Pause Mode

- To enter Pause mode, click the Pause button (Figure 47).
- While being in Pause mode, the user can skip to the previous clip or to the next clip within the Show Playlist. The user can also directly go to three minutes after the pause location or go back to three minutes before the current pause location within the current clip (Figure 48):

ť.	Monitoring Scheduling KDM	A Show Playlist Screen Builder Management	Content Scontrol Management		Quit	
		Screen-	01 -			
	Playback Control					
	Show Playlists (43)	Playback				
	non_encrypted_for_6.1.2	Mode		on "Ext Start" do "Reset Pla	aylist"	
	Serenity_S1	Manual Playback		Preshow Timeout		
	stem_dci			START_SCOPE		
	Stem_DCI_SPL test			 WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-1_ BEAN-HOLIDAY_TLR-1R_S_I 	S_EN-XX_US EN-XX_US-GB	Clip
	Test1 testme			FRED-CLAUS_TLR-2_S_EN-X START FLAT	(X_US-PG_51	Progress
	test_spl			FEATURE	Subtitles	Bar
	Village_S5			- END	. suburies	
	xioi					
	Load SPL					Clip
	Add SPL <u>R</u> emove SPL					Remaining
	CPLs (426)					Time Value
lump 3	😵 all cpls	WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-	1_S_EN-XX_US-GB_51_	2K_SPE_20070717	DELUXE	
Minutoo	 100Hz_Sine_3D_23.98fps 100Hz_Sine_3D_24fps 	Pause manual	17%			Show Dlavliat
Initiales	100Hz_Sine_3D_25fps	Elapsed Time: 00:00:26		Remaining	Time: 00:01:59	Show Playlist
Backward	100Hz_Sine_20_30fps		Serenity_FL_03			Progress Bar
	 128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr. 	1	0%			
	128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Enc.) 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Enc.)	Elapsed Time: 00:00:36		Remaining	Time: 02:05:30	Skip to Next
	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr.					Clip Button
Skip to	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encom					Chip Dattori
revious Clip						lumn 3
Button	Remove <u>C</u> PL(s)	Mode: Play				Juinp J Minuton Abaad
	L					winutes Anead
			LMS Disk Usage: 6292 GB of 9303 (GB Tuesday May 15 2012	, 2:40:51 PM	

Figure 48: Preview Tab in Pause Mode

- Click the Play button to re-start the playback from the selected point.
- To set the Loop mode, meaning that the current playlist will be played in loop, select the Loop mode in the list-box.
- While in pause mode, the user can locate within the current clip by clicking on the Clip Remaining Time value (Figure 48).

Locate Time Code				
Enter the time code to lo	ocate to:			
00.07	.01 00	4		
00:02	.01.00			
	Ok	Cancel		

Figure 49: Locate Time Code Window

- Enter the desired time code value or use the two arrows on the right and click the Ok button (Figure 49).
- The user will have jumped to the specified time code within the current clip (Figure 50).

Ρ

	Scheduling KDM	w Z Show Playlist Screen G Content Management G Management Panel
		Screen-01 -
	Playback Control	
	Show Playlists (43)	Playback
	non encrysted for 512	on "Ext Statt" do "Becet Plavlist"
	Serenity_FL_03	Mode O Black
	Serenity_S1	Manual Playback
	stem_dci	
	Stem_DCI_SPL test	WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-1_S_EN-XX_US BEAN-HOLIDAY_TLR-1B_S_EN-XX_USGB
	Test1	FRED-CLAUS_TLR-2_S_EN-XX_US-PG_51
Time	testme test sol	START_FLAT
nine aada	to_test_content	Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtitles
code	Village_S5	- END CREDIT
value		C.E.O.
resulting	Load SPL	
from the	Add SPL <u>R</u> emove SPL	
	CPI 5 (426)	
Locate	😨 all cols	
operation	100Hz Sine 3D 23 98fps	WATERHORSE-REV_ILR-1_S_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_SPE_20070717_DELUXE
·	100Hz_Sine_3D_24fps	Pause Base Base Base Base Base Base Base Ba
	100Hz_Sine_3D_25fps	Elapsed Time: 00:02:01 Remaining Time: 00:00:24
	100Hz_Sine_3D_30fps	Serenity_FL_03
	128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr.	1%
	2128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr.	Elapsed Time: 00:02:11 Remaining Time: 02:03:55
	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr.	
	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr.	
	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr	
	Remove <u>C</u> PL(s)	Mode: Play 🔻
		LMS Disk Usage: 6292 GB of 9303 GB Tuesday May 15 2012, 3:23:24 PM

Figure 50: Locate Result

• To resume back to playback, click the Play button.

4.5.2.2 Show Playlist Loading

The manager or admin privileges allow the user to stop the current Show Playlist. The same privileges allow the user to load another Show Playlist from the Show Playlists window.

- To load another available Show Playlist:
 - Click the Stop or Pause button.
 - Click on desired Show Playlist in the Show Playlists window.
 - The content of the selected Show Playlist will be displayed in the Show Playlist Progress list-box.
 - Click the Play button to start playback.

4.5.2.3 CPL and SPL Management

• When logged in as admin or manager the user will be able to add or delete a SPL and CPL (Figure 51).

	Monitoring Scheduling KDM	ew Z Show Playlist Builder Screen G Content Anagement G Management Panel
		Screen-01 -
	Playback Control	
	Show Playlists (43)	Playback
Remove	non_encrypted_for_6.1.2	Mode
SPL	Serenity_S1	Manual Playback
Button	SPL1 stem_dci	U Black
	Stem_DCI_SPL test	 WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-1_S_EN-XX_US BEAN-HOLIDAY_TLR-1R_S_EN-XX_US-GB
٨٩٩	Test	FRED-CLAUS_TLR-2_5_EN-XX_US-PG_51
Auu	test_spl	FEATURE
SPL	Village_S5	- END
Button	xioi	CREDIT
	LoadCL	
	Add SPL <u>R</u> emove SPL	
	CPLs (426)	
	😵 all cpls	WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-1_S_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_SPE_20070717_DELUXE
	 100Hz_Sine_3D_23.98fps 100Hz_Sine_3D_24fps 	Pause 83%
	100Hz_Sine_3D_25fps 100Hz_Sine_3D_29.97fps	Elapsed Time: 00:02:01 Remaining Time: 00:00:24
	100Hz_Sine_3D_30fps	Serenity_FL_03
	128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr	1%
_	 128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 	Elapsed Time: 00:02:11 Remaining Time: 02:03:55
Remove	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr.	
CPL	128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr	
Button		
	Remove <u>C</u> PL(s)	Mode: riay Y
		LMS Disk Usage: 6292 GB of 9303 GB Tuesday May 15 2012, 4:29:15 PM

Figure 51: Screen Management Tab – Administrator Account

- To remove a Composition Playlist, select the CPL from the CPLs window and click the "Remove CPL" button.
 - If the content has been locked using the Edit Locking button (Figure 43), and the user tries to delete the content, a window will appear telling the user that the content is protected.
- To delete a Show Playlist, select the Show Playlist from the Show Playlist window and click the "Remove Show Playlist" button.
- To add a Show Playlist, click the Show Playlist button.
- The following screen will be displayed (Figure 52):

Show Playlist available:	
Madagascar06	
Madagascar_HD_06	
Madagascar_HD_06-1	
Madagascar_HD_09	
Madagascar_HD_11	
Madagascar_HD_11-1	1000
NewPlaylist_JOb	
Serenity03	
Serenity_FL_03	
Serenity_FL_05	
Serenity_FL_10	
Stealth_SC_01	
Stealth_SC_02	
Stealth_SC_04	
Name:	
	<u>S</u> end <u>C</u> ancel

Figure 52: Window to Add a Show Playlist

- Choose the required Show Playlist and click on Send.
- The selected Show Playlist will be added to the screen and the Show Playlists window will be updated accordingly.
- The presence of all the required assets will be checked and the missing assets will be ingested by the selected screen. The ingest process will be visible in the Content Management tab.
- As admin or manager, the user will be able to lock the playback mode.
- To lock the Manual mode, click on the Mode button which is located above the Manual Playback tag on the top of the window.
- The Schedule Playback window will appear indicating the new playback mode.
- The following Screen Management tab will appear (Figure 53):

Monitoring Scheduling KDM	t Z Show Playlist Screen Builder Quit Management G Control Panel Quit	
	Screen-01 -	
Playback Control	Playback	Scheduled Playback
Malformed_10_6.1.2 MOVIES non_encrypted_for_6.1.2	Mode on "Ext Start" do "Reset Fraylist" Scheduled Playback O Black	Mode
Serenity_FL_03 Serenity_51 SPL1 stem_dci Stem_DCI_SPL test Test1 testme test_spl to_test_content Village_55 xioi ↓	Black START_SCOPE WATERHORSE-REV_TLR-1_S_EN-XX_US BEAN-HOLIDAY_TLR-1R_S_EN-XX_US-GB FRED-CLAUS_TLR-2_S_EN-XX_US-PG_51 START_FLAT FEATURE Serenity Full Movie with Sp. Subtitles END CREDIT	
Add SPL Remove SPL CPLs (426) all cpls	WATERHORSE-REV TLR-1 S EN-XX US-GB 51 2K SPE 20070717 DELUXE	
100Hz_Sine_3D_23.98fps	Pauco 83%	
100Hz_Sine_3D_24tps	Flags (0):02:01	
100Hz_Sine_3D_29.97fps	Coronity FL 02	
100Hz_Sine_3D_30fps	Serenity_FL_05	
2128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr 128 Reel Composition, "A" Series (Encr	Elapsed Time: 00:02:11 Remaining Time: 02:03:55	
128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 128 Reel Composition, "B" Series (Encr. 22 DCL Maximum Bitrate Composition (22 DCL Maximum Bitrate Composition (
	I MS Disk lisare: 6292 GB of 9303 GB Tuesday May 15 2012 4:43:05 DM	

Figure 53: Screen Management Tab – Scheduled Playback Mode

4.5.2.3.1 CPL Icons

The following icons represent the following KDM status:

- No icon: a 2D not encrypted CPL
- Green lock: a 2D encrypted CPL with valid KDM that will expire in more than 48 hours
- Compare the second second

- P- Orange lock: a 2D encrypted CPL with KDM that will expire in less than 48 hours
- Image: SD black: a 3D not encrypted CPL
- 10 green: 3D encrypted CPL with valid KDM that will expire in more than 48 hours
- 3D red: 3D encrypted CPL with missing/expired KDM
- 1 Comparent text and the second text and text

4.5.2.4 Control Tab

The Control tab enables the user to execute Macro Cues on a selected screen (Figure 54).

🗈 Monitoring 🔄 Scheduling 🔂 KDM 🗾 Show Playlist Builder 😨 Screen Management 🕄 Content Anagement Screen	🚺 🔵 💥 Quit
Screen-01 -	
Playback Control	
House Lights	
Dark 1/2 Lights Bright	
Masking	
Scope Flat	
Projector Dowser Onen Close	
Projector Lamp	
On Off	
Automation	
On	
×	
LMS Disk Usage: 6395 GB of 9303 GB Thursday May 1	7 2012, 10:39:47 AM

Figure 54: Screen Management: Control Tab

4.6 Content Management Tab

• To enter the Content Management tab, click on Content Management on the top of the GUI (Figure 55).



Figure 55: Content Management: Ingest Progress Tab

• There are two tabs present: the Ingest Progress tab and the Logs tab.

4.6.1 Ingest Progress Tab

- In the upper part of the window, all the files that are being ingested will be shown.
- The lower part of the window will show the ingest queue.
- The upper part of the tab shows information regarding the percentage of the asset already being ingested.

Note: A server can only ingest one package at a time. Trying to ingest content on a screen that has its local storage full will result in the ingest session being put on hold. The Note column will display a message that states, "Not enough disk space." It will resume once there is enough disk storage space.

- Two cancel buttons are available:
 - 1) Cancel Ingest button will cancel the currently running ingest process.
 - 2) Cancel SPL Ingest button will cancel the selected running ingest and removes queued content that is part of the same SPL.

Note: When an ingest is canceled using the Cancel Ingest button, the ingest will be re-started

automatically by the TMS. It will not re-start automatically if the associated schedule is deleted from the Scheduling tab.

- The user can also pause and resume an ingest using the Pause and Resume buttons (Figure 55).
- Two types of ingest are possible: Automatic Content ingest and Manual ingest.
 - 1) Automatic Content ingest: SPL content will start transferring to the screen if the scheduled SPL content is not present on the screen server.
 - 2) Manual ingest: Using the Ingest SPL button in the Show Playlist window (Figure 23).
- The user can also change the priority of the ingest using the Edit Priorities button (Figure 55).
 - Select an ingest and click on the Edit Priorities button. A window will appear (Figure 56).
 - To move an ingest up in the list, increase the number in the priority field.
 - Numbers can range from 0 to 100, with the higher number indicating a higher priority.
 - Once the priority is changed, that ingest will move to reflect its priority. For example, an ingest with a priority level of 5 will appear before an ingest with a priority level of 3.

	🚔 Edit	
	Job Id	318916229
	Created	2012-06-05T10:54:03-07:00
	Creator	TMS 1.4.6-0
	URI	assets/4330fa0e-6079-4b57-98eb-ca60ae85e577/4330fa b57-98eb-ca60ae85e577.xml
	Source IP address	192.168.100.110
	Description	BABIES_TLR-1F_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_RE_20091027_FI
	Scheduled	06/05/2012 + 10:54:03 +
	Priority	1
Edit Priority	Multitask	0
		Save Cancel

Figure 56: Edit Priorities Window

4.6.2 Logs Tab

The Log tab shows Ingest logs of the selected screen.

Screen-05 🔹 💻 Delete				
Description 👻	Scheduled	Started	Finished	
4CHRISTMASES_TLR-1 F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_NT_20	0080 Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	
9_TLR-1ALT_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_RE_20081217_FK	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:55	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:55	
African-Cats_TLR-1_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_DI_20100	408 Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:55	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:56	
BABIES_TLR-1F_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_RE_20091027	FKI Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:56	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:56	
BASTERDS_TLR-B_F_EN-XX_UK_51_2K_UP_20090206_	ASC Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:56	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:57	
BedtimeStories_TSR-1_F_EN-XX_US-GB_51_2K_DI_20	080 Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:57	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:58	
IRONMAN-2_TLR-3_F_EN-XX_US-GB_2K_51_PC_20100	309 Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:58	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:58	
FLAT_COKE-FLIGHT-02_MeanTroy	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:54	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:58	Tue Jun 05 2012, 10:58	
*[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c	i761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d;	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1-	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets// [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d! 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be33	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 3]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
「Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSUBRARY:assets/c (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17)- ASSETMAP scanned (こを移ら (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17)- PAK asset scanned (Tec279)	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3: ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 3]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
「[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c 「Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]. Consid [d7612695.48a.a& (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]. Consid [d7612695.48a.a&	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 -ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 11.04ba.9130453717661	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 3]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/ [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Optied [d7G1a685-548a-482] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d7G1a685-548a-482]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d; 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 -ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 0-4d4-020-a130d5a71766]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 3]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c2806 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-544]- /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-544]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 777-7583-4c4c-a840-f0030797be3 -ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- RKL asset scanned [ffec279] (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548-48c (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-54]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 =e2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] f-8639-30b574d5b1fe]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned (262686 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-54 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [cf7b7091-e722-461 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- MXF ingested [cf7b7091-e72	4761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 77.758-4c4c-8840-f0030797be3 ee2f-401b-484-0404d6720e2] 41-93b9-a139d5a71766] Fa8-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] Fa839-30b574d5b1fe] 2-461F-8639-30b574d5b1fe]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/ [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [C26866 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-548-464 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d71b685-548-464 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d71b7091-e722-461 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- MXF ingested [c71b7091-e723 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- XXF ingested [c71b7091-e723	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 11-93b9-a1396571766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] Fe639-30b574d5b1fe] 22-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/ [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279] / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-548 / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- Copied [d77b7091-e72-46] / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- MXF ingested [d7b167091-e72 / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b1632-358-40] / Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b1632-358-40]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d; 177-75a3-4c4c-8840-f0030797be3 1924-910-848-0404d6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 18a-8401-93b9-a139d5a71766] 18639-305574d5b16] 122-461f-8639-30b574d5b16] 1a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e] 12-401a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets// /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [C26866 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-464 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:28]- Copied [d761a685-548a-464 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d7b1091-e722-461 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b1091-e722-47] /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [a7b3633c-3583-401 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-758-3-4-4-8840-f0030797be3 -ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 193b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 16639-30b574d5b1fe] 12-461F8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e] 16-a95401b-8488-eb9d9f8f371e]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/ [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-544] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- Copied [c7b7091-e722-461] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- MXF ingested [d7b1091-e72 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [c7b303-c358-340] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358-340] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358-340] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXL asset executed [ffec279]	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 277-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] F-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 22-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1-8d98-eb9d6f8711e] F-82f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] f-e2f-401b-8048-05940d6f720e2]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [c7fo1a685-548a-48c (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [c7fo1635-548 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [c7fb7091-e722-461 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [c7fb7091-e722-461 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [a7b3633c-358-340] (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [a7b3633c-358-340] (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [c7b7b3633c-357 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset excuted [ffec279 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 777-7583-4c4c-a840-f0030797b8-3 ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d66720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] Fe839-30b574d5b1fe] 22-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] La-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e] 63-401a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e] Fee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6f720e2] Fee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6f720e2]	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- RSSETMAP scanned [C26866 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [Ifec279f (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CpL ingested [d761a685-548a-464 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d71b7091-e722-461 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- MXF ingested [c71b7091-e722 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [a7b3633c-358a-400] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358a-400] [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MKL asset executed [ffec279 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c26866	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 1ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 11-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 1e635-30b574d5b1fe] 1a-8d98-eb9d9f8f371e] 1e-82f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 1f-e2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be33	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 3]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned (26686 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-54 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- Copied [c7b7091-e722-461 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b3032-358-400 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b3032-358-400 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b2031-e72 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PXL asset executed [ffec279 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-758-3-4c4-a840-f030797be3 12924-010-8438-0404d6720e2] 1293b9-a139d5a71766] 483-93057475b1fe] 12-46176839-30b574d5b1fe] 12-46176839-30b574d5b1fe] 12-46176839-30b574d5b1fe] 16-261401b-8438-0404d6720e2] 77-758-3-4c4c-a840-f030797be35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1-]]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-46x /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d7b1a685-548a-46x /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d7b7091-e722-461 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- KAF ingested [c7b7091-e72 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358a-401 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [a7b3633c-358a-401 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- AKL asset imported [ffec279 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be3 tea2F401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1a-4018-8d98-6b9d9f87371e] 9f-ee2F401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9] 1	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets// /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-54 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- Copied [c7b7091-e722-461 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b332c-358-400 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b3633c-358-400 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-75a3-4c4c-a840-f0030797ba3 12224101b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 12359-a139d5a71766] 18a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 18a-68d9-30b574d5b1fe] 12-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 12-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 18-2641-8438-0404d6720e2] 19-27401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 17-75e3-4c4c-a840-f0030797ba35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [C26866 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [Ifec279f [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d7b1a685-548a-48c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:25]- Copied [d7b1a685-548a-48c [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- KAF ingested [d7b1091-e722-461 (Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [a7b3633c-358-401 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b333c-35 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 [Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-758-3-4c4-a840-f0030797be3 5ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71716] 22-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1a-8498-eb9d9f8f711e] 8a-491a-8d98-eb9d9f8f71e] 9f-ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6f720e2] 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9] 1	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets// /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [c26866 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-48c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- CPL ingested [d761a685-548 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:26]- Copied [c7b7091-e722-461] /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b332c-358-340] /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Copied [d7b3633c-358-340] /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL ingested [a7b3633c-357 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-75a3-4c4c-a840-f0030797ba3 1848-0402d6770e2] 193b9-a139d5a71766] 6839-30b574d5b1fe] 2-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 2-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 1-a6d98-eb9d9f8f371e] fee2f-401b-8438-0404d6f720e2] fee2f-401b-8438-0404dd6720e2] 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	
[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- Ingest TMSLIBRARY:assets/c /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- ASSETMAP scanned [C26866 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:17]- PKL asset scanned [ffec279f /Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:18]- Copied [d761a685-548a-46c /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:28]- Copied [d761a685-548a-46c /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:28]- Copied [d7b7091-e722-461 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- KNF ingested [d7b7091-e727 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b7091-e727 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- MXF ingested [d7b7091-e727 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset executed [ffec279 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- PKL asset imported [ffec279 /[Tue Jun 05 - 10:55:27]- Assetmap ingested [c2686e	1761a685-548a-48d1-93b9-a139d 177-758-3-4c4-a840-f0030797be3 5ee2f-401b-84a8-0404dd6720e2] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 8a-48d1-93b9-a139d5a71766] 16639-30b574d5b1fe] 2a-461f-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 2a-4618-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 2a-4618-8639-30b574d5b1fe] 2a-4018-8639-804574d6720e2] 9f-ee2f-401b-84a8-0404d6720e2] 77-75e3-4c4c-a840-fd030797be35	5a71766/d761a685-548a-48d1- 9]]	93b9-a139d5a71766.xml	

Figure 57: Content Management: Logs Tab

4.7 Control Panel Tab

4.7.1 Tab Overview

- To enter the Control Panel tab, click on Control Panel on the top of the GUI.
- The Control Panel tab allows for the user to be logged in specifically as admin or manager.
- The Control Panel tab will also allow the user to view information about the server.
- Clicking on the Control Panel tab will display the following window (Figure 58):



Figure 58: Control Panel Tab

Note: The user needs administrator privileges to add or remove servers, load POS files, and generate reports.

• Clicking on the About button will provide the TMS version information (Figure 59).

About	×
Doremi Theater Management	
System GUI	
1.4.6	
(c) 2006-2012 DoremiLabs,	
Inc.	
OK	

Figure 59: About Window

4.7.2 User Management

• To change the user, double-click on the User icon (Figure 60).

	Cli Ma Admin:	ck Cancel to enter whith nager: Allow you to exe Allow you to execute al settings	out logging cute all act l actions and	in. ions d modify
	Username:	admin		•
Logout Button	Password:			
	<u>L</u> ogout		<u>o</u> k	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 60: Authentication Window

- Choose the appropriate user-name and enter the corresponding password.
- Click on the OK button.
- To use the TMS without any specific user privileges, click on the Logout button.
- The different rights and privileges associated with each user name are presented in the following section.

4.7.2.1 Administrator User Rights

- When logged in as admin, the user is allowed to perform all functions including:
 - Edit links
 - Add and delete schedules
 - Ingest content on the LMS
 - Load a POS file
 - Browse and edit screen properties
 - Create and save an SPL
 - Control SPL playback
 - Generate reports
 - Upload and delete KDMs

4.7.2.2 Manager User Rights

- When logged in as manager, the user is allowed to perform only the following functions:
 - Edit links
 - Add and delete schedules
 - Ingest content on the LMS
 - Upload and delete KDMs
 - Create and save an SPL
 - Browse screen properties
 - Control SPL playback

4.7.2.3 Simple User Rights

- When not logged in as either admin or manager, only the available functions are possible:
 - Upload KDM
 - Refresh
 - Create an SPL, but not save it
 - Browse screens and screen properties, but not edit them
 - Browse tabs

4.7.3 Servers

• To view the information related to the available screens, click on the Servers button in the Control Panel tab (Figure 61).

Add Server	Scan Network	Save X Quit
Screen-02 Screen-04 Screen-05 Screen-06 Screen-07 Screen-01 TMSLIBRARY Server	Server info Server Name: Screen-02 Auditorium No: 2 Playback: 2D • Serial No: 204616 Network server type Ingest © Screen O Satellite File type to scan Key Delivery Message Doremi licence Show playlist Installation package Composition Playlist	Authorize "play while ingest" from this server
	Accounts Server group (Required for Ingest) Server IP: 10 .11 .21 .23 Ingest Protocol: FTP Iest Login: manager Password: Confirm Password: Share directory: //	dmin group (Required for Administration) lanagement IP: 10 .11 .21 .23 ngest Protocol: FTP v Iest ogin: admin assword: confirm Password:

Figure 61: Netmap Edit Window

<u>Note:</u> Only the LMS server called "TMSLIBRARY" will have the Server Type field set as an ingest server. All other servers must have this property unchecked.

Note: Only users logged in as admin will be able to edit the screen information. Other users can view the information, but not edit or modify the information.

- To add a server when logged in as admin:
 - Click on the Add Server button.
 - A new server will be added to the server list allowing the user to define the settings.
 - Click on Save to validate the action. Server names can include UTF-8 characters.

- To remove a server, when logged in as admin:
 - Select the desired server in the server list and click on the Remove Server button.
 - Click Save to validate the operation.

<u>Note</u>: If the Confirm Password field does not contain the same password as the Password field, the asterisk (*) will be displayed in red and not green (Figure 62):

Server IP:	10 .11 .21 .23
Ingest Protocol:	FTP 🝷 Test
Login:	manager
Password:	******
Confirm Password:	*****
Share directory:	1

Figure 62: Wrong Password - Asterisk in Red

• If the keyboard is in Caps Lock mode, a message will flash across the top of the window to alert you to the issue (Figure 63):

			Caps Lock Message	
Netmap editor	- Doremi Cinema	Administrator		
dd Server	<u> </u>	Scan <u>N</u> etwork	CAPS LOCK IS ON	🔄 Save 🔀 Quit

4.7.4 POS File

Figure 63: Caps Lock Symbol

A POS file has the date, time, movie title name, and the associated auditorium number of the shows.

- To specify the POS file location, click on the POS File icon (Figure 58).
- The user will need admin privileges to load a POS file (Figure 64).

Pos File C	onfiguration	_ _ ×
POS Mode-		
Mode:	Local	•]
Location:	/doremi/etc/pos.xml	Browse
Preshow du	ration: 60 sec	ond(s)
X Apply to	all POS schedules	
-Refresh info Every	rmation 1 minute(s)	
		reload now
-		

Figure 64: POS File Window

- Use the Browse button to define the POS file location.
- The frequency at which the POS file is to be inspected is to be defined in the Refresh Informations window.
- The Reload Now button allows the user to force the TMS to reload the POS file specified in the location field.
- Schedule shows will start X seconds earlier to account for the preshow duration.
- In the example above, the value is 300 seconds which equates to 5 minutes.
- Click the OK button when finished.

4.7.5 Ingest

• The Ingest icon allows the user to ingest content on the selected screen (Figure 65):



Figure 65: Ingest GUI

- Click on the Ingest button to start ingestion of the selected content.
- To select multiple items, click on the "Ctrl" button and then click on the desired items.
- After selecting multiple items, click on the Ingest button.
- The selected items will be reverse highlighted after being selected for ingestion.
- Click the Close button when finished.

Note: The items highlighted in gray have been ingested on the LMS. The items in black are not ingested.

4.7.5.1 Monitor Tab

To see the progress of items being ingested, click on the Monitor tab (Figure 66). It will provide a description of the ingest, when the ingest was scheduled, when it started, and when it finished.

Description	Scheduled	Started	Finished
CPL: Doremi Ref Test 8	2012-06-29T12:48:52	2012-06-29T12:48:52	2012-06-29T12:
2kF2d24-250_TST-2D_F	2012-07-06T15:38:50	2012-07-06T15:38:50	2012-07-06T15:
2kF3d24-250_TST-3D_F	2012-07-06T15:38:50	2012-07-06T15:39:01	2012-07-06T15:
2kS2d24-250_TST-2D_S	2012-07-06T15:38:50	2012-07-06T15:39:09	2012-07-06T15:
2kS2d48-250_TST-2D_S	2012-07-06T15:38:50	2012-07-06T15:39:18	2012-07-06T15:
(••
		Fo(-1	Success
MXE indexted [66610876-230	230e-4def-8eb8-7c1e2b5a	50Ta]	100%
 PKL asset executed [92ca PKL asset imported [92ca 	a5982-0e8d-41cb-9118- 15982-0e8d-41cb-9118-	7705c3fe6531]	Total Progress
Assetman ingested [292b	19b7-88c1-4929-bf6c-1	3b48a5aa5721	100%

Figure 66: Ingest Monitor Tab

4.7.5.2 Satellite Ingest

The Satellite Ingest icon serves the same function as the Ingest icon, however, it specifically allows for ingests from Satellite servers. It ingests from servers configured as satellite in the Control Panel \rightarrow Server tab.

4.7.6 Disk Cleanup

The Disk Cleanup tool scans for any incomplete CPL packages or orphan asset files. The Disk Cleanup tool helps with freeing up disk space by allowing the deletion of any incomplete content package present on the LMS server. The disk cleanup utility is run from the Control Panel tab of the TMS software (Figure 67):



Figure 67: Disk Cleanup of the Orphan Assets

• Select any item that shows a size greater than 0KB and click on Continue (Figure 68).

Disk Cleanup	
iles to delete:	
Orphan assets: 524288 KB	
Incomplete CPLs: 0 KB	
Incoming assets: 0 KB	
Fotal amount of disk space you gain:	524288 KB

Figure 68: Orphan Assets Size Checklist

• Once finished with Disk Cleanup of Orphan Assets, the user needs to re-run the Disk Cleanup to make sure that the previously selected Orphan Assets or complete CPLs are cleaned (Figure 69):



Figure 69: Completed Cleanup of Orphan Assets and Incomplete CPLs

4.7.7 Log Report Generation

The user will need to be logged in as admin to generate log reports of the TMS.

After selecting the Generate Report button in the Control Panel tab, a confirmation window will appear which will ask about a log report generation (Figure 70):

Doremi Theater Management System allows creating a log report that can be usefull for support purpose by doremilabs.	
Do you really want to create a log report.	
Yes No	

Figure 70: Log Report Generation Confirmation

• Click Yes to generate a log report (Figure 71).



Figure 71: Log Report Generation Progress Bar

• The user will be notified about the file path once the process is complete (Figure 72).



Figure 72: Log Report Notification

• Click on the OK button when finished.

4.7.8 Multiplex Macro Execution

The Multiplex Macro Execution feature allows the user to schedule a macro cue on all screens simultaneously.

- Click on the Multiplex Macro Execution button (Figure 58).
- The following window will appear (Figure 73):
- Select a macro from the drop-down list.
- Click the Execute button to proceed with the action or Quit to cancel the action.
 - The user can also click the check-box to prevent the macro cue from being executed on any screen that is currently in playback.
- The user can also clear the logs on the bottom part of the screen by clicking the Clear Logs button.



Figure 73: Multiplex Macro Execution

5 LMS Control Panel

To access the LMS Control Panel, go to Menu \rightarrow LMS Control Panel.

• The following window will appear (Figure 74):

LMS Co	ontrol Panel						_ 🗆 >
Select a pr	ogram to start:					×	<u>Q</u> uit
Account Manager Netmap E	Applications Configuration C iditor Networkin Configurat	Date Configuration Operation Date Configuration Date Configuration Participation Configuration Confi	Display Configuration	Cog Manager	Macro Execution		
Start Acco	unt Manager						Sta <u>r</u> t

Figure 74: Control Panel Window

5.1 Account Manager

- To edit, delete, or create a user account, click on the Account Manager icon on the Control Panel tab (Figure 74).
- The following window will appear (Figure 75):



Figure 75: Account Manager Window

- To create a new user account, click on the Add button.
- Enter the user name along with the full name (Figure 76).

User name of the user – it will be used when logging in	Full Name Privileges	New_User User ShowManager	Se	t <u>P</u> assword
Full name seen in the Account Manager window	Login Type	● application ○	system	
			<u>S</u> ave	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 76: New User Creation - Information Window

- Define the privileges of the new user by listing the account as: ShowManager, Administrator, Projectionist, or SuperUser.
- Choose if the account will be a Application User or System User, by checking the appropriate radio button. The two types are described below:
 - 1) An Application User has access only to the TMS and the associated files with the TMS.
 - 2) A System User has access to the TMS and can log-in to the system from the welcome screen, which is located outside of the TMS GUI.
- Enter the new password by clicking on the Set Password (Figure 77).

Password	****	k¥
	Password str	ength: strong
Confirm	****	iok
	<u>S</u> et	<u>C</u> ancel

Figure 77: Password Window

- Click on the Set button.
- Click on the Save button to complete the new user process (Figure 78).

	🤰 Edit	🕺 Add 🕵 Delete		🔀 Quit
	Login 👻	Full Name	Privileges	_
	admin	SuperUser Account	SuperUser	
	dcp	dc	Administrator	
	doremi	Projection Account	Projection	
	Elie	Elie	Projection	
	games	games	Projection	565
	halt	halt	Administrator	201
	ingest	ShowManager Account	ShowManager	
New User Added	manager	ShowManager Account	ShowManager	
7	New_User	User	ShowManager	
	operator	operator	Administrator	
	root	Administrator Account	Administrator	
	shutdown	shutdown	Administrator	▲ ▼

Figure 78: Account Manager Window - New User Added

• To edit an account, select the account and then click on Edit (Figure 79).

	Elie	Set <u>P</u> assword
Full Name	Elie	
Privileges	Administrator	•

Figure 79: Information Window - User Edit

Note: The user will be able to edit the full name, privileges, and set the password. The user will not be able to change the login type and user name.

- Click on the Save button when editing is complete.
- To delete a user, select it in the account manager and click on the Delete button.

5.2 Applications Configuration

The Applications Configuration feature allows the user to set the parameters for log retrieval, the TMS GUI, and the TMS service. Hovering over the individual field will provide more information on each section.

• To access this feature, click on the Applications Configuration icon. The following window will appear (Figure 80):

Application name	general		
og Retreiver	retrieval —		
MS GUI		[
TMS Service	start	05:00	
	end	09:00	•
	- realtime		
	interval	5	•
	- booking		
	time	04:00	*
	- general		
	past days	10	•
	-		

Figure 80: Application Configuration

5.2.1 Log Retriever

This application is used to configure the parameters of log retrieval. The default parameters are explained below.

- Retrieval start and end time: Secure and operational logs will be polled from the screen server between 5:00 AM and 9:00 AM, which is often a time a server is not playing any content.
- Realtime Interval: The Log Retrieval service collects real time operation logs from screen servers and store them in a database for quick viewing in the SM Viewer user interface. This parameter represents the real time logs retrieving interval. By default, the TMS will collect every 5 minutes. Note that the real time operational logs collection is delayed when a server is in playback mode to avoid any conflict with playback.
- Booking Time: This is the time at which the requested day logs will start. By default, the Log Retrieval service will collect the secure and operation logs of each server for events happening between 04:00:00 and 04:00:01 of the previous day.
- Past days: This is the number of days in the past to look and retrieve log files that have not been downloaded. By default, the Log Retrieval service will go back 10 days in the past.

5.3 Date Configuration

By clicking on the Date Configuration icon, the user can configure the date, time, and time zone.

5.4 Display Configuration

The user can configure the display of the screen by clicking on the Display Configuration icon.

5.5 Log Manager

Clicking on the Log Manager icon will allow the user to configure the settings for log uploading.

- To configure log settings, click on the Log Manager Icon in the LMS Control Panel (Figure 74).
- The following window will appear (Figure 81).

Save	⇒Log Manager	
Button	<u>Save</u>	Quit
Frequency Options	Active log uploading Frequency Daily Ol:14 PM Nhm of ratios. 2	Site ID
	name	Wat between retries (minutes).
	manager	Compress files before uploading
	test	🛛 Upload system logs 🛛 🕅 Upload security logs
		Name
		URL
		User name
Now		Password
Server		
Button		Test
		🖲 🔤 🖉 Button
	New F	Delete

Figure 81: Log Manager

- Click the New button to add a new server.
- Check the Enable box to make sure that the server becomes active, i.e., logs will be sent to the server.
- Selecting the Active Log Uploading check-box will activate log uploading for all manager sites.
- Select the Frequency of sending logs from the options:
 - Daily: specify time
 - Weekly: specify day and time
- Enter the name of the server in the Name field.
- The Number of Retries field and the Wait Between Retries field are there to define how many

times the uploader daemon should retry the FTP upload in case of failure and the interval to wait between two retries.

- Enter the appropriate URL destination in the URL field. This represents the URL of an existing FTP site where you would like to have the logs uploaded (e.g., <u>ftp://127.0.0.1/folder/</u>).
- Site ID: This field is used to differentiate between files uploaded from different TMS sites. It is used in the name of the uploaded file.
- Enter the username and password required for authentication to the FTP site.
- The Home Directory field indicates the folder into which the files will be stored.
- The Security and System logs are checked by default, meaning that they are included in the log upload.
 - Un-check the Security (SMPTE) logs box to exclude the security logs from the log file that will be uploaded.
 - Un-check the System (Doremi) logs box to exclude the System logs from the log file that will be uploaded.
- The user can also check the box to compress the files before uploading.
- Once finished, click the Save button.
- Click the Test button to test the connection to the server where the logs will be uploaded.
- You can delete a server by selecting it from the list and clicking the Delete button.
- To quit the application, click the Quit button.

Note: Logs not collected for few days are automatically collected as soon as possible. If FTP server is not reachable, logs are kept and will be sent as soon as it is possible.

5.6 Macro Execution

The Macro Execution icon serves the same function as the Multiplex Macro Execution icon in the TMS Control Panel. For more information on this function, refer to Section 4.7.8.

5.7 Netmap Editor

The Netmap Editor icon serves the same function as the Servers icon in the TMS Control Panel. For more information on this function, refer to Section 4.7.3.

5.8 Networking Configuration

The Networking Configuration feature allows the user to set the network parameters. Clicking on the Networking Configuration icon will open the following window (Figure 82):



Figure 82: Network Configuration

• Double-click the Ethernet port that you want to configure (Figure 83).

Ethernet Device		×
General Route Hardware	Device	
Nickname: etho		
Activate device when co	omputer starts	
Allow all <u>u</u> sers to enable	and disable the device	
Enable IPv <u>6</u> configuratio	n for this interface	
O Automatically obtain IP a	address settings with: dhcp	*
DHCP Settings		
Hostname (optional):		
Automatically obtain	DNS information from provide	er
Statically set IP address	es:	
Manual IP Address Setting	15	
A <u>d</u> dress:	192.168.100.105	
<u>S</u> ubnet mask:	255.255.255.0	
Default gateway address	;; [
Set MRU to: 0		
		Cancel ØK

Figure 83: IP Configuration

- Make sure that the Activate Device and Allow All Users check boxes are selected and that the Enable IPv6 check box is not selected.
- Click the Statically Set option to activate the Manual IP Address Setting fields.
- With assistance from your IT administrator, fill out the fields and Click OK.
- In the Networking Configuration window, go to File \rightarrow Save to save your settings.

• To quit the application, go to File \rightarrow Quit.

5.9 Remote Shutdown

Clicking the Remote Shutdown button will allow the user to shutdown one or more screens.

- Click on the Remote Shutdown icon.
- The following window will appear (Figure 84):

	ORemote Screen Shutdown	
	Screen Server	
	Screen-01	
	Screen-02	
	Screen-04	
	Screen-05	
Deheat Dutten	Screen-06	
Repoot Button	Screen-07	
		Minutes Field
Shutdown Button	- 🕑 🧿 in 0 🗸	minutes
	Status	
Cancel Shutdown Button	Cancel Shutdown	Close

Figure 84: Remote Shutdown

- Select the servers you want to shutdown or reboot.
 - To select more than one server, hold down the Ctrl button.
- Set the amount of minutes until the reboot or shutdown in the Minutes field (Figure 84).
- Click the Shutdown or Reboot button (Figure 84).
- To cancel the shutdown or reboot, click the Cancel Shutdown button (Figure 84).

This completes the procedure for setting up the TMS application.

6 Acronyms

Term	Definition
CPL	Composition Playlist
DCP	Digital Cinema Package
GPI	General Purpose Input
GPO	General Purpose Output
KDM	Key Delivery Message
SPL	Show Playlist
SMS	Screen Management Server
LMS	Library Management Server
TMS	Theater Management System

7 Document Revision History

Date	Version	Description
09/02/2008	1.0	First Version.
04/08/2009	1.1	All sections revised.
04/08/2010	1.2	All sections revised.
07/11/2012	1.3	All sections revised.